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To
The Members
Solvcda Solhvare Indi:r Private Limited

IN DEI' ENDENT A UDITOI1'S IIEI'OIi.T

Report on the Audit of the St:rndalone Financiitl Statements

Opirrion

\\'c havc er-rtlitcrl lhc lre e ,)nll)irr\ inl strrnrillonc llnulrciltl stalctncnts ol-Solyeda Sttltuarc India
Private Limiterl ("thc (.iom;)un\,"), uhiclr complisc thc IJalancc SIrcct as at \,1arch 31.1021.
the Statement of'Plollt ancl I-oss (inclLrcling Other (ionrprchensivc Inconre). the Stiitenrcnt itl'
Changes in llquitl, nnd the (llrsh lrlon Stalement fbr the vear enclccl. ancl a summary ol'
significant accotu-rting policics ancl other explanator.v intbrmation (hereinalier referrecl to as
''thc standalone f-rnancial statemeuts").

In our opinion and to the best ol'our intbrnration anclaccolding 1o thc explarations qirelt t() Lts.

the aforesaid Ind AS financial statenrenls give the inlbrnratiorr rcqLrirccl bl the Act in the
lural-)uer so required ancl give a tLr-rc arncl lair vieu,ir-r confbnr-rit1, u,ith thc Iucliar-r Accoltrttinq
Star.rdards prescribed under section 1i3 of the Act read r,i,ith the Ciornpanies (lnclian Accounting
Stanc'lards) Rules.20l.5. as amended. ("lncl AS") ancl othcl accounting principles generalll,
acceptecl in India. of'the state ol aflirils o1'the ('onrparrr as a1 Nlnrch 11. 201.1. its plotit
inclLrcling olltcr conrl-rrehensirc incorle. its cash lluu's ancl thc changcs in cclLrilr lor the veal'
cnrled on that clatc.

Basis lbr'Opiniorr

Wc conductecl our ar-rcliL in uct:olrlnnce riitlr thc Standlrrcls on ALrcliting (S,\s) spccifieci unclet'
sectionl4i (10) ol'the (-orrpanies Act.201i OLrl rcsponsibilities uncler tlrose Stanclarcls are
ftrrtlrer clescribecl in the Autlilrn''s Res:1ton.s'ibilitias fur thc Auclit ct the Firunciul Slulemen.t.v
section of' our report. We arc indepenclent o1'the Cornpany' in accorclance wilh lhe C'ode ol'
Ethit'.s issuccl b1' the Institute o1' Clhartcrcd Accountants of India together u,ith the ethical
recluirerlents that are relevant to our:rudit olthe financial stater-nents uncler tlie provisions ol
the Clontpanies Acl.2013 ancl thc'Ilr-rles thcrcr-rncler. ancl ri,c har,'c firlflllccl our other ethical
responsibilities in accorclance u,ith thcse rccllrirements ancl the Cocle ol'lrthics. We bclicr,c that
the audit er,,iclence ri'e have obtaincd is sull'rcient and a;rpro;rliate to provide a basis firr oLu'
opinior-r on financiaI statements.

Kcr .{udil Mutlt'r's

I.,cy aLrci it nuittcrs lu'c thosc r)lirttcrs tlllrt. iir oru l'llolcssionltl .i tttlgntcnt. \\erc ol'tttttst
sigr"iiticancc in oLrr auclil ol'thc sttrnclalonc llnancial statcrncnts o1'tht: curlct-tt pcriocl. Ihesc

- r"r'rarttcrs ucle aclcllessccl in thc contert r.rl'our auclit ol'tlrc stunditlonc llnancit.t I st:rlentents Lls lt
olc. ancl irT fbrnting or:r opinion thereon. and n'c do not lrroi'icle a separate opinicl-t on these
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i{cporting o1-key aldit matlers as per sA 701, Key Audit Mtttters al'e l.tot applicable to the

Clorttpatty ns it is an ltnlistecl companY'

hllbrrnlti.n other tl"r:rn the stirutl:rlonc liinancial litatcrnents and Auditor's ILeport
'l'ltereott
.l.he Cornpany,s lloard of Directors is responsible IbL the other inlblmation. 'l'he other

inlbr-rr-ratio^ compr-ises the inlbrrnation included in the Manas,ement Discttssion anrl Annlysis,

lloartl,s l{epor.t i'cluilirrg Annexures to lloard's Report. IJr-tsiness t{esponsit;ility Iiepot't,
gcirpor.ate (iovernanc".na Sharcholclcr''s Informalion. brrt ciocs ttoL include tltc stattr'ialotte

l'inancial sLrtcLnenls ancl our audtlor"s rcporl thereon'

Our opinion on the stanclalclne [inancial statements does ttot cover the other itllbrtnali0tt atlcl

r,,.c t1o nol cxpress an,v,[br[r clf assurance conclusion theretln.

In connccti0n rvith onr auclit of thc stanilal0ne linancial stalcntcnts, ollr respollsibility is to rercl

tlrc ollicr.rrrlbr'ration ancl. in rloi'ng so, cclnsidel whethcr tho olher intornratiorr is ntatcrielLv

i,corsisterrr rvilh thc starrdalonc 1-rrrrncial statements, or orlr [<nou'lctlge obtained irr thc aLrtlit

.r otherrvise allpears to bc matcrially rnisstatecl. If, basecl on 1he u'oLli w'e have perlbtl11gfl' $'e

concludc tliat lhere is a material nrisstatcment cllthis otlrer inlbrLnatiorl, we llre reqLtired to

ri,:porl tirlt lirct. We have notlrrrlg to repoll in this regard'

&,[:ulagemrnt,s Itesponsitlilitics Iur the Standalone ]'inltrtci:tl Statcrncut

.1.6e (.ourprruy,s lJoartl o['l)ilcctors is lesponsible lbr thc nritiet's strtccl irr Sectiorr l ]ui(5) ol
thc Conrplnie s Act, 2013 ("the Acr") r,,,itir respect to rlre p|cparatiotr oi' the se stantlalotte:

{lna,cral stateurents that givc a truc and fair view o1' tlte linancial position, ilnltncral

perlbrrna,cc inclucling othcr.complehensive income, caslr ilo.nvs and changes in eclr-rity of the

Company irr accordalce rvith accorrnting principles genelallv accepted in India, includirlg the

" [.dian Accountinp, Stanclarcls (lnd AS)ipecihed under section 133 olthe Act. rclrc] rvilh the

gtrrnpanies (tncliair Accounting Stantlarils) I{r.rles, 2015" as attlentlecl ll'onl litnc ttr lirrre '

'i'6is ri:spops;ihility nlso inclr-rr1cs nrriintcnance of adequate ucuoLtnting rec()r(ls in 'rccortlance

*,ith thc prt,r,isioLis of the Act lor- sal'eg,rrarding o1'the assets o1'1hc C'ompanl' and 1bl ilrcvcnlittg
alil detecting. fiaurls alcl oliicr-in'egularities; selectton ancl application ol'applopriate
accountilg pglicies; n-ral<ing.juclgnrents and eslimates thal are reasonable artd prudetrl, ancl the

c1esig.n, irirl-rlcr-rrentnlion and nraintcnunce ol- adequate intclnal flnancial control tlltl rlct-c-

opcrati,g cl'tecf iyely Io1. eusnrips tlrc accu;acy and cornl-.,lctettess o1'thc rtocortntitig rei:ortis.

rclevlint to llrc prcpar-atiun au<l prcscntation of the stanclirlott; ilnartcial stalctncnts ilrlti giYe a

tr.,e urtrl Iair vicw antl are 1l-ee tl'on-r mrtcrinl misstatement. rrhctltet't1lte to li-attt1 or eL't'or.

In pr.epuring tlie linancial statclnclrts, r.uunagetnent is resPonsiLrle 1br assessing lire Oornparry's

atrititl, ts c'6ntinr.re as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, tnatters relalecl to goirrg

conce* arrrl using thc goiirg concerrr basis of accounting unless mi'lnagement eithcl interlcls tcl

liquitlatt tlrr oomptrriy or to ceasc operltions, or has no rcitlistic altct'natiYc btrt to clo s0'

.1.6o:.;c lltiur.d ol'Directots are alsg r'csponsible for overseeing the contpany's llnlrncial |cportirlg

pfoccss.

Auclitor,s l{.esponsibilities for the Audit of the standalone Financial statements

ol;.jccrivcs,r-c to obtain rcasonlrblc assurunce about rr'ireilrct'tlre lltrartcial stilielllcnts ils a

lc lrle licc littLn trratcrial tuis:;tlltetrlcnt. rvhethet'c1lt: ti'' il'lutl ot'et'roL' atl(1 1lt issLLt'lrliffis
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is not a gLraralttee that an audil conclr.rctecl in accordance lvith SAs will alvvavs detect a tnaterial
lt'risstater.nerrt r,r'hen it cxists. Misstatcrrcnts can arise 1r'onr 1r'aLrcl ot'crt'or and lre consiclcrcci
matcrial if-. individLrallv or in aqgregatc" ther coLr ld rcasonnblr bc crpcctccl to inlluetrce thc
econor-r'tic decisions ol'users talicn orr the basis o1'tlrcsc llnancill statentenls.

As ltart of'an aLtclil in accttlclunce r,i ith SA:. riu ('\r'r'e ire l.r',rlussiortitl .j trclutttcrtt atrcl tlaitttain
1-rrolessiortal sl<cpticisrrt throtrshoLtt thc nlrdit. \\"e also:

lclentil\ lncl asscss tlrc risl,s ol'nlrlclilrl rrri:sllitenrt'ril ul'llre llnlrneiltl stlttcrttcttts.
it'he thcI tllrc ttl fl'lltrcl 'rr crl'()l'^ (lcsillrl ltrltl pcrlilrtrl lttrtlit llroe ctltrt.e t lcslltlllsir c to tllilse
lisli.s. ancl ohtuirr aucl it cr,iclcncc Lhat is sLr l'lle rcrtt atttl ug'rpt'oltriaLc L() plor iclc a basis lbr'
our o;linion. 'l'lre risl<' r)1'not detccting a nraterial rt-tisstatenrent I'esLrlting 1r'orn fl'atrcl is
higher tharr'firr one resr:ltirru fl-orr error, as fiaLrcl rnay involve collLtsiort. fbrger-v,
intentional ontissions. rrisrepresentations. or thc oven'icle of internal control.

Obtain rut Llnclerstanclinu ot'internal et,ntlol rclcrranl- to the arrclit irt orclcr to clcsign ar-rclit

proceclures that are applopriate in the cilcr.rrrstnnces. Llndcr scction 143(3Xi) of thc
Conr;lanies Act. 201i. r,i,e nrc also responsible tirr c.rpre ssing orrr opiniotr orr r.r'hether
the company has adeclLrate intcrnal llnancial controls slstcrt"t in place ancl the operatirrg
e1'l'ecti vcrrcss o1' such contt'ols.

F:r,alLrate the ultpropriateness ol'uccountirrr,l i-r,rlicics Lrscil lrrttl tltc reasottttblcttcss ttl'
Irccorntti rre cst i rnatcs lrrrti rc lltcri il i sc losr rres n utrlc hr nllrlr gcrtlertt.

( i,ne lrrilc 0tr tltc ltltIr', )l)t illlcnC-\\ ,,l n[lnlr!e Ire r]['s Lr\L' i,l t]tc lrrittg c0ttcc[rt lllrsis ill'
accounlinq anrl. buscti ,Jlr thc lrLrdit rr irlgrcc Lrtrtltinucl. r,, lrcthcr lt rllttcrial ttrtcerlttittlr
crists rclatccl Lo cr cltts r)r'collcl iti()ns that rnlr-r e rrst silnillulrnt tloubt tltt thc L otttpattt's
abilitr to coutinue as l goirrg c()nccnr. lt'ri,'e conclLrtlc tlllit a ntatcrial Lutccrtaintv crists.
\\e are rccluirecl to drlir utte'ntion in orrl ruclitor''s rcp()rt to the lclated clisclosr-rt'es in tlte
1'rnancial statcntents or, if sr-rch clisclosures are inacleclLrate. to rnodif'r'otrr opinion. OLtr
conclusions arc based on the auclit evidence obtainccl u1-l to the date of oLrr auclitor's
report. l-lorvever. lutr-rlc events or conclitions nrilv cilLrse thc C'omparrr"to ceasc tcr

colttinlrc as a gtiilrg cottccflt.

Ivaluatc thc olerall ptc\cntlltion. strLretLrrc and contcnt ol'thc llnancirl statentcltts"
inclLrclirrg thc clisclosLrles. ancl r,r,hc'ther the llnarrcirl stntenrents l'cprcscnt the Lrnderlvittg
transactions ancl cr'cnts in a ntaltttct'that lclrie ', cs llrit' 1'rt'cscrttatit,rt.

We ccintn'tLrniclrlc rr itlr those clrrr'!rcrl ri illr !,rr cl-rllrrt:. r'rrrlllr'rlirtrl. iil)t()ttg otltct' tttltltcls. thc
plannerl 11q,1te antl tirtrinS ()l'1lre lru(lit iin(l si!trilrtlrrt lrrrrlii ilrtiir-sr. irclLrilinS linr :igrtiliclrrrt
clcllcicncies irt irtLcrrtlil eottttr,l illltt rie i,lL'iltilr rlitrirlr-t ()ttl llllLlil

\Ve also ltroridc thttse elralgetl rrith !.()\'clr)anee tritlr u:lir[rtttrttti lltrtl rre ltare corrtpliecl r,r'itlr
rclevant ethical lcclr-rirernenls rcgarcling inclcpcnclerrcc. anil t() colln.lLu)icatc with thern all
relationships ancl other nratters that nrav rcnsortablv be thoLrght to Lrear'olr oLl'inclcpenclertce.
and r,i"here app I icab le. re latecl sa lcsuarcl s.

Irront the utatters cor.r'rn-rLrnicutccl u,ith those clrargccl l.l'itlt g()\'cntaltce. \\'c cleterttlitlc thilse
lnattcrs tlrat were of ntost sisrriflcancc in the aLrclit ol the llnarrcial stalellcnts ol the ctttrettt
periocl ancl arc therefitle thc l<cr lrudit rlatte ls. We clescribc thcse rlattcrs in ttur aLlclitot''s repofi

less laiv ur rcgr.rlation plcclucles pLrblic cl isclosLrrc lifroul thc nratter rlt'i,r'hert" itt cxl-retrtelv
circLrrlstaltccs. \\,e cletcrnrine that a nratLer shoLrltl rrol be cott.tn'ttuticl.ttccl ilt ()ttr rcllolt



becrausc thc adverse Lronsequences o['doing so would reasonitbly bc expectecl lo oultvciirh the

1lublic itttercst bencl-tts o1' sttch cotrttultnication.

Ileport ott Otlter Legal and Itcgul:ttorv Itequirements

i. As recl.tirecl by the Clompanies (Auclitor's report) Orcler, 2020 ("the Order") isstted by the

Centr.al Govcrnment of India in tenns of sub-section (11) o1'scction 143 oi'the act, is applicable
to the conl)rllty (As per Annexure z\).

2. As retiuilcd by Sec,tiotl 143(3) o1'thc Act, lve report that:
(a) \i/,: lriir,e songht and obtaitrctI all tlie inlbrmation ltttci cxplanaliotls rvliicli 1o tlrc bcsl of

our i<nou,lc<lge and belie 1'\\rcl-e necossary for the ptrrposes o1'our aLrdit.

(Lr) In oLrr opinionr proper boolis ol'account as requirecl by larv have been kept by the
(,'gqrpar-ry so firr as it appcars liotn otLr exatninatiott <11'tltose bool<s.

(c) 'i'tre lncl-AS slandalone llnarrcial statements i.e.,ltlalarrcr: Sltect. Statetncnt oi'l'l'tliit ltrrrl

l.oss iticlLrcling the Statcrricnt of Other Oomprtltcnsive lttcottlc, thc ( llrsh I1lorv

StalcLnent ur,if Stnt.,-,-,cnt oi'(,1ianges in Iiquity dcalt w'itir by this ltcpolt rLrc irt

aglcetncut r,r,i1h the books ol'accilunt.

(c1) ln olr opinion. 1he albresairl slanclalone linancial slatemenls con'rply with thc lndian
.,\ccounting Stanclards speciliecl uncler section 13-i of the Act, reacl with OotllPanies
(lniiirn Accounling Stanrlarrls) I{Lt1es, 2015, as atlrcntletl.

(c) Orr t6e basis oi-the lvr-itten rcpreserrlations receivcri 1l-orn tlie ilirectors. tal<clt on t'ccOt-d

[r1,rhe iJ6arcl e['])irectors. nonc oi'thc clirectors is tlistlLralillecl li'oLn being appoitrteclas
l iijicctor in tet'nls o1'Secliorl 1(;4(2) of the Act.

(i) Silce thc Oorripauy's lLrrnovcr trs per last audited linancial statetncnts is less thlrn i{s.-50
gr.or-cs arul i1s Lorr.,ri,ing-. liour banhs trnd linanciui irrstituliorls at ilnY tirttc tlLLtittu tltc
ycur is lcss f[an i{s.25 (.rolcs, thc (]ot-npany is e,rcrrtplctl It'ottr gcltirlg an ltrrci]t opiniort
ri,itir r'csltcct 1o the adcclrac1,o1'tlre internal l-tnancial controls ot'er I'ttrancial rcporting
oi'tlre conlptirly anil thc oper-ritirut e1-['ecliveness ol'stti;it conlt'ols'n'icie nolillcalion dlrtcd

iurre 13" 2017; atrd

(g) I. o1r opipion ancl to the bcst ol onr information and erccot'ding to tl"ie explantrtiotrs

1li.,,cu 1o rrs, thc lentuneralion paid by the Company to its dir-ectors tluritltl lhe veilr ts in

Ircci;r.i-lance \\,ith the p|ovisions o1'seclion 197(16) o1'thc Act.

(5) Witir respect 1o the other u'rat.tcls to be included irr thc i\LLdiior's l{cport itr actcortlance

ri,ith l{ulc l1 ol-tfie (.'ompapies (Audit and Auditois) l{Lrles. 2014, in our opitrion and

tti tlrc best 6l-onr inlonnation unclaccording to the explanations given to us:

i). l'lie (lorlpauy does not hrve any pending liligations ri'hiclt rvottltl irtrprrct its
ljrxtttr'iltl positiott.

ii) 'l'he (lornpany rlitl rrot lrave any long-tcitn t:onlLllcls inclr.lcling tlcrivative
contracts l'br rvhich lltet'e r'vere any materiai lore seealrle losses.

i). 'I'here were uo amonnts rvhich recluired to be transferrecl by the company to the

I nvcstor iltluc at ior-i ancl l) rotcction Fund.



ir,).

v)

rri)

a) 'I.he managemetrl has t'epresented that, to the best of its knowleclge and beliel,
no funds have been aclvanced or loaned or invested (either ll'om borrorved
Ittnds or share pt'ernluur or any other sourccs or kin<i of lirnds) by the
companv to or in any other person(s) ol cntity(ies), includrng lbreign entities
("lntennec-liaries"), u'ith the understantlirrg, rvhetlier- lecorded in rvriting or
othet'u,ise. llrat thc Inlet'merliary shall, u,lrc(hcr, dircctly or indircctlv lcnd or
invcst in olher persous or entities identillerl in any lranllcr whatsocver bv or
on behalf' of tl"re company ("IJltimate lleneficialies") ol plovidc any
guarantee, sccurity or the [ke on behalf of thc lJltirnate ]]enef rciaries;

b) "l'lte manas.cr-t-iertI ltas leprcsented that, to lhe besl of ils linowlerlgc lrrT d irelie l,
IIO lirnds have be cn leceived by the contpuny li'onr An_\, |r l:;()n(s ) (,r
cntitv(ics), inclrrtling lbreign entilies 1"'lirrntling Irlrtie-s"). u,rtii tlrc
Itnclerslanclipg, s,helltct'reccllded in rvritinir or tlthclrvisc, that thc courpanv
sha11, rvLrethcr. tlilcctly or indirectly, lencl or invest in other-ilcrsons ()r-cnt jties
identihccl in any nrannet whatsoever bv or on bchalf o1'the Iiunditru Party
("IJhirnate llenellciaries") or provide any sliaranlee, security or thc iihe on
bchall' o1' the IJllirnate Ileneficiaries; aucl

c) llased on sltch aLrdit procedures that u,ere considerccl r'easonublc unrl
Itltpropt"iate in t[re cit-etLnrstances, nolllirrg lrrrs conrc lo itur notit;c thtrt hls
causctl tts to bclicvc 1lta1 the representlrtiuns rrnrlcl sLrb-clause (a) urrd (b)
contain atl1, tl"talet'ial tttisstatement.

No clivitlcncl iras bccn cicclar.ed or paid durrng 1l're ycar by the oonrpanv.

Ilascd orl our cxanritutlion rvhich includcil 1es1 clieclis. the Conrpan-v lias uscd
accol.ttilittg sofiw'at'c's lbl maintaining its l:o,.rl<s of iiccolrnt. u,hiclr Irare u
lealule o1'rccot'rlittg rrtulit trail (edit log) lirciiilv rrntl the sarne hlrs opr-riited
tltt'ttttcholtt tltc yeiii'lirl all relevanl lransactions r"ccorrlerl rn the rcspcctive
solhvare. Fut'tltcr, lbr the pcriods whele the autlit trail (ctlit log) iirciliry rvas
cnablecl anrl operatccl thlougliout the year lbr the respective accoLrnting
solhvate, u,e tlid not conre across any inslance ol-the audit trail I'eature bcing
lampcrecl *'ith. I{eporting on I{ule 11(g) is applicable il'onr thc linrrnciul vcir
2023-24 Accordingly, lhis reporting w.r.l. pr.cse rvation o1'ar-riiit tllil ri,ciLrlil he
lelevar-rt lion-i thc sccouil vear i.e. financirii vcar-20211-25.

Date: 25los !211q
Place: Ciurgaon
uDrN: 2\otq?og BKDHYX 6e o6

i)urtneL
N,l No. 039709

I]I{N-0 1 29E5 N

a Anrn & Co
Accolr nl lr n I s
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,\rrncxrrrr rl to tltc Auclitors' [lcport (Year 2023-2024)
'l'[re unnexlit'c rcl-elrcd to in Iutlepcntlcnl Auditclr's I{cpolt t]atcd 1o the ntcrnbels ol the
(lornpany cin the llnancial statenients lbr the year ended 31st Nlarch 2024, rve t'eporl tllat:

i) (a) (A) 'l'he Oornpany is n'rairrtaining proper recortls sltou'ing litll partictllars inclLltling
iluaptitatiye dctails and sitLtrtion clf lixed assets i.c., ['rolterty, Platrl & I]icltliprrlent.

(ll) 'l'tre Oonrpany has maintained propeL t'ccortls shou,ing 1r-r[1 plu'ticLrlitrs ol'

lntangible Assets.
(b) ,\s illirrnteil to trs, lhc ljxcd assets i.e. Propcrty. Plant & Ilquiprnent has becn

plrysically 'veri{lecl by the management cluring the year and no material

tliscrepancies were noticcd on such verification.
(c) t'irere is no irnmovable ;rroperty held by thc company hencc lliis claLise is not

rpplicable .

(cl) f itc Oolrpaly has nol lcvulued its Property. l'lltnt irntl Irquiprnetlt or inlangiblc
Irssets clr.rring the Ycar'.

(e) Accortlipg to the inltl'rnation and explanation givetr to ns. l'to plclceedings havc beeti

initialerl or it1'e pending against the company lor holtling any benami properly uncler

rhc Ilcnarni "l'r'apsaclions (l)rohibition) Act, 1988 (45 oi 1988) and rulcs uratle

llrert-:ttntIe r dtrling t[rc Yelrr-.

ii) (lr) r\s thc cotrrl'xrnl is serr iru providing compaltr atttl is ttot hoit[ng allv tl]\ t'tl1ttt.v.

ircpce rerluirement oi'reporting on physical veriilcation ol'inventory or tuailttenance

olinvenloty recot'cls is not applicable.
(b)'l'he Oompany does no1 irave rvolking capital lirnits in erccss ol ljve croIU rLtpecs

(al any point o1'time cluring the year), in regregatc, Ii-ot-tt banl<s ot' linrrttcirtl

insl"itutions on tlic basis of sccr-rrity olcument assels" Accttltiinltiv, the ltrovisiotts o1-

clause 3(iiXb) ol'tlte Ortlcr.rtrc trot applicable.

iii) Accoriling 1o inlormation lind explanation giverr Lo tts, the compilny has no1 grantcil
alv i9u1. sccurerl or unsecrirctl to companies, fit-ms, lirnitetl liability parttlct'ships or

elircr partics covercrl irnricr L'cgisler required i.tnclcr scclion 189 o1'tltc (lrrtlllrrtriics

,\sr 201-i.Accordingly. plragraph 3(iii) of the ol.(lcl is not upplrclble.

iv) lrr onr opinion ancl accolcling to inlorrnation atrcl explanalicln given to us, tlie
coplpiiny has nclt granted any loans or providecl iinv gttal'altlecs ot-given arry se curity
or. rnade any inveslrnents 1o u,hich the provision of' seclion I85 ltnd I 86 of the
(.oippanies Acl,2013. Accolciingly, paragraph 3 (iv) o1-tiie orcler is Liot lllpiicrtblc.

Accor.iling to the inloltnrrtron ancl explanation given lo tts. thc colllpan,v hrts ttot

ircccpted aly clt-posits 1l'orn tlre public and hencc the tlirectivcs issLtcd by 1he lltrscrve
liank o1-lnclia and, thc pror,isictns of sections 73 to 7(r, or any otliel relevant provisions
i'the Act ancl the Oompanics (Acceptance o1' Deposit) lramed thet'eundet', rvhere

v)

licable. Accoldingl,v, thc yrlovisions of ciause 3(v) of'thc Ordel arc not applicablc.



\ri)

vii)

i*)

x)

viii)

'llic nraintcnancc ol' cc.rst ;ecords under sub section (1) ol seclion 148 of tlre
(iornpanies Act, 2013, is ttot applicable to the (iompany.

(1) Accgrclir-rg to lhe inlbrrnation and explanatiotis given to lts ancl on the basis ol'oltr
exaptination ol'the records of the Oompany, antor.tllls cleducted/ accrned in tlte bool<s

9l'acconnt irt respect o[-undispLrted statutorv tlttes irtcltrcling provitlertt iitnil,
egrplolrees'State insutanCe, incottte-tax, sales- tax, serr''ice tax' goodS ancl scrYite
r,,.*, ai1ty ol' custor-t-rs, cltrty ol excise, value atlcictl tax. cess antl otltct' ttrltterial
sLalutory clues have bcerl ileposited during 1he ycar by the compatry u'itli tlie
lppriipriate authorilies srLbjcct to some delays in deposit of provident lrtncl, rvhich is

rrgt rnaterial. 'l'here arc sorte delays in deposit o1'sta-lqtory <1r4-9s at the close o['the
vcur lbr a periocl ol'more than six n-ronths fiom llie datc they become payablc" clctiril

as follows:q

(b) Accgrcling to thc inliu'nrntion and explanation5 given to lts. lhere ilre r]o cltles o1'

stilrs-1ux, inc6gte-tax- serricc tr1x, cllstoms tax. (iS'l', crcise drtty' ccss u'lticlt ltal'c
1'any di lrir-i:1 to tlrc loll

Irr nur opigion ancl accorcling to the infbnr-ratiott luttl erplltnrltiorts givett i,, ,,5- 1|tcrL'e

rs not ariy tt-ansactior-r no1 r-ecot'rlctl in the boolis o{'tLct:t,rLttt1 ltltvc lleen srtrtclltleretl or
tiisclosccl:rs ipcoltc clutirrg tltc year in the tax assessrncnls uncler thc ltrcot'rlc tllx act.

1961 (43 of l96l).

'l'he OclLnpany has not tal<cu loan or any othet'bonorvir-rgs liorn banli tlr l-tnattcilrl
ilsriturtions rluling the ireur. hcnce requiremetrt o1'tlelirtrlt irl l'ellaytncnt o1 loatl tlr
irrlele st is not altplicable.

(1)llascd upgn the auclit pioccdures performecl atrcltlre inlirltrritliou ancl cxpllrnrrtiotts
qiyen by t|e 1lanau,ement. 1he coLnpany has not laisetlmollcys by rvav ol''l'et'itl l.olttr
iiom ljalk or Financial lnstitr-rte or inilial public ollcl or firrtl-rer pr-rblic ofi'er
ilclsrling clebt ilstrr.rmenls. r\ccolclingly, the provisions ol clause 3 (x)(a) of the

Ordcr are not applicable to the Oon-rpany and he nce nol colntncnted lt1;on.

(b)Accorcling to the rnlbrnration and explanlttiol givetr to tts attcl bascd or) ottl

r.rlt1rilatiorr ol'olrr rccgr-rls of the Oompany, thc Oortrpany hlts tlot tnatle lttiv priVate

placenrent o1'sharcs clr-lring 1he year.

\ltrue ol'Statnte i\afur'e o1'tlttcs Period of r.vLrioli atrroLLltt reilrles Arrottnt
l)ue
(n-rillion

l)r'or,'iricnt IfLtnd l)| Coritlibrrtior.r April, May, .Itrne. "ltrlv, ,\ttuLtst, Septenrber'
2023

I{s. 0. 16

lt(il 1)len tlcp()sitctl Ult I'ici:0l.ltrt ol any ctlspute stli)Jl1.l rl llte I()[iu\v1l)gS:
Nature of the
Stahrte

Nahtrc ol JJttcs Aurount iuvoh,cLl ll-.
iLr million

orulrr wltc,re tlre ciisPt.tt,: ls
e rrclinu.

lrrcome'l'ax Act,
196 L

Incorlte l'rtr 0.54 (lPL', I{ect ification per rcli ir1-t.

ffi



xi) (a) 'l'o the best ol cxrr knllrvlcilge and beliel, antl uccording tcl tlte inlbrrnrttiotl attd' 
crpllrpatiori giyen 19 us. aud records of the Oontprrtty examinecl by us, rlo liirLttl by
lirc ('ornp:,i,1y ur any fi'uril on 1he company b-v its olllcers tll eulployees has beetr

iioiiccii or reportcd duling the cottrse o1'otlL audil'
(b) DnLing the year no reltort under sub-section ( I 2 ) of section 143 o1'the OoinPanies

Act has been llled by the auclitors in Form AD'f-4 as prescribed uncler rLrle 13 of
Conrpanies (Auclit and Ariclitors) I{ules, 2014 with the Central (iovernnicnt.

(c) As ar.tclitor-, we dicl ngt rcceive any whistle- blctrvet'conrplainl dr'rrrng 11tc 1'car.

xii) 'lhe conrpaly is r"utt a Niriiri courpany, hence plt'rtuLapli 3(rii) is not aplllicrtbic.

xiii) llasecl ,,n o.,, ALrclit Ploccrlulcs and on the in{blmatiou and explanation given to Lts

bi, thc rnanagcltcnt. in orrr opinior-r all the transltctions ttntlcrtakcn by 1[rc colllpilnY
* irlr 15e rclaLrl par-tics arc in compliance with scctiorr 177 lrnd 188 of thc (''i,rtrt1'rrrties

,.r.:1. L0l-l anci clclails hlivc ttccn disclosed in the [lrrlrncial stntelnents ct(] ilir Lccluircd

lr-v tlie altpl i cab 1e I nd i iilr ll ccorttttitrg standards'

xir,) In o1r opinion anrl bused ou orrr examination, lhe Oompatly has an inlernal audit
svstem cornffrensltrate *,i11-r thc size and nature of its business. We have consiclered

i5c internal aluiit lepolt o1'the colltpany issuecl till tlatc for the pcrioci uncler audit.

xv) Accgr.rling 1o the inlbnrrlrlion and explanatiorts given by the lllallagrlllctrl, tlrc
('ontpany has nclt entercii into any non-cash tt-lttrsltt:lions u'ith ttit'cctors ol pt:rsol)s

rronnectcrl u,irh hirn as rclLllecl to in seclion 192 o1'('ornpanies Act,20l3.

r'i) ,\ccoruling 1o the inlonnaliitn and explanations givcn to LIS. ure are of the opinion thlit
tlri: co6lxrny is not reclLrirccl to be re gistererl undcr scction'15-lA o1'thc Jlcsct r c llrtrtl<
,.ii-lnrlilr Ao1, l93zl and tlrc conrpany is not a ('ot'e lnvesttnent Oonrpanl'((ll(l) rs
ifctlrrccl in t6e legllations nnrle by the l{esclvc lJanl< o{'lntlilt. accottliirglv tlre

1,1'rivisittns ol cluLrse 3(rr i ) ol'the order are not lipl;licl'rllic.

xvii) Accor-cling to 1he inlblLuutrorr and explanalions give n to Lts and based on the aLrtiit

ltr.gcerlures cgncltrctecl we arc ol'opinion that the colllplllly has not incrured auy cash

i,,rr., ig the lllalcial yerrl ancl lhe immediatell" prcceding financiai year.

xviii) 'lhcr.e has been no rcsrgnation ol' the stalrttorY ltrtditors tltLring tlte Ye tlt' rttlcl

,ccer.rling1r,. thc pr-gr,isions c',['c.lause 3(xviii) o1'thc ( )rder is not applicablc.

xix) L.in the basis of the lrrurrrcral latios, ageing atid cxpcctcd datcs o1'realizrtron of
llnarrcial assets a11d paynrept of ijnancial liabilitics, othcr inlbrniation accoupanyitrg
i6c llpancial slaterrents, or.tr knorvledge o1'the Iloard of Ilircctors and tnanllqcmet'it
pllLrrs lind baserl on ogr c.rarriirration ol'the evitlcttce srtpportinu, the asslrtlll"rtiolls,

rrrliting- 5as cor-ne to orrl lllcntion, which cllr.iscs LLs to beiitVc tltllt rttiY ttirltcriitl
rrirc.,r.ririntl, cxists ils o1 thc clate of the autlit r-.rr.it't irrtiicltting llial c()llll)illiv is

itrcIl-.,rblc o1-rrcctirrg ifs irliriiifres existing at tir'-'tirrtc of irltlllticc sltcel rts lttld rt'ltcn

thev lall rluc u,ithin a lrclroci ol'one year fiom tlrc lrlrlaucc sheet date. We. hotvevcr,
state thal this is not an ilssLlrllllce as tO the futlrrc viability o{'thc colnpany'

ffiS



xx) 'l'Lre provision o1-section 135 o1'Companies Ac1.2013 is applicable to thc coniinny.
(.lonsecluent 1o thc Oonrpanies (Oolporale Social I{esponsibility I'}oiicy) Amenilntent
I{ules, 2021 , provision has been made at the year-end lbl the unspent arnonnt o1- I{s.
0.34 million ancl has been tlanslerred to a separate bank accounl subsequcrrtly.

'ltre reporting nncler clausc (xxi) is not applica[rle in respect o1'ar-iiiit o['strintialone
llnanciirl statements o1'tlre (-'onrpany. Accordirrgl)', lio colnlnent hlls bccn inclLrdcil
irr lcspect o['saicl clausc untlel this report.

rla ,,\run & (lo
Accountarlls

1298sN

xxi)

(CA
Padner
M No. 089709
Place: Gumgram
Date : 25loS llo:-V
UDIN: 2q oS?? oq gKDH YX 6ooe



Solveda Software lndia Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in Indian rupee millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No
Balance As at

March 3L,2024
Balance As at

March 31,2023
ASSETS

1. Non-Current Assets

a) Property, plant and equiPment
b) FinancialAssets

(i)Others
c) Deferred Tax Asset

2. Current Assets

a) Financial Assets
(i) Trade and other receivables
(ii) Cash and cash eQuivalents
(iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Loans

b) Other Current Asset

5.1
5.2
5.3
5.4
6

2

3
4

15.26

1.81
11.19

158.94
25.84
74.40

1.25
22.67

20.72

2.35
3.42

108.40
11.65

100.00
L.54

22.03
TOTAT ASSETS 311.36 270.L!

EQUlTY AND TIABITITIES

1. Equity
a) Equity Share capital
b) Other equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
a) Provisions

b) Other non-current liabilities
2. Current Liabilities

a) Financial liabilities
' Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

b) Other current liabilities
c) Provisions

d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

7
8

9
10

11

t2
13
L4

0.16
195.85

L6,LT
L6.L7

1.88

9.04
30.99
L4.23
26.93

0.18
201.50

18.58

0.55

2.47
1,5.97

3.11
27.75

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 311.36 270.!t
Refer Note 1 for Significant Accounting Policies
See accompanying Notes to financial statements
Vide our report of even date attached

uja Arun & Co.
Accountants

CA. Aru.n,Ahuia
Partner
M. No. 089709, FRN-012985N
Place: Gurgaon
Dated: 25-05-2024

For and on behalf of the Board of

1c*r, l.;ti-;,4
Niraj Kumar Ganeriwal
Director
DIN:03560704

w)d
oeepak\garwltJ
Director
DIN:02095054

#RF
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Solveda Software lndia Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in lndian rupee millions except share data and as otherwise stated)

Particulars
Note
No

Year ended
March 3L,2024

Year ended
March 3L,2023

(l) Revenue from operations
(ll) Other lncome
(!ll) Total income (l + ll)

(lV)Expenses:
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortization expense
Other expenses
Totalexpenses - (lV)

l(v) Profit before Tax ( lll - lv )

l(vt) rax expense:
lCurrent Tax
I

llncome Tax for earlier year
lDeferred Tax

l(Vll) Profit / (Loss) after tax ( V - vl )
I

l{utt) ottl"r comprehensive !ncome

I n. ttems that will not be reclassifled to proflt or loss

I i) Actuarial Gain / (Loss)

I tnco*e tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to

I prorit or loss

I A. tncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
I profit or loss

lrotrt other comprehensive lncome - (Vlll)

1,,*r ro,., comprehensive lncome ( vll + vlll )
I

lrotat Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders

learnings per equity share of Rs 10/- each
Isasic
lr,,u,"o

15
1,6

t7
18
19
20

2L

455.89
2.O1,

37s.90
4.84

457.90 380.74

332.29
0.04
8.44

52.L7

212.48
0.03
7.79

52.L2
392.94 272.41

64.96 108.32

24.41
0.23

(7.771

28.95

(1.13

48.09 80.50

7.38 (3.62

7.38

55.47 76.88

55.47

2,949
2,949

75.88

4,60C
4,60C

Refer Note 1 for Significant Accounting Policies
See accompanying Notes to financial statements
Vide our report of even date attached

i"\llllfl,"";* ffir'$\ w
lca. nrurl|trula
lPartner
l*. *o. 089709, FRN-01298sN
lpt..",Gurgaon
lort"d, 2s-os-2024

For and on behalf of the

lpp-{r(,.tr'

Board of Directors

u"!
Niraj Kumar Ganeriwal
Director
DIN:03560704

v,,L\(+
o""pa\ne".)/"t
Director\
DIN:02095054
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Solveda Software lndia Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 3L.O3.2024

(AIl amounts are in lndian rupee millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

Particulars
Year ended

March 3L,2024
Year ended

March 3L,2023
Cash Flow from Operating Activities:
Profit before tax:

Adjustments for:

Depreciation & amortisation

(Profit)/Loss on sale of lnvestments and fixed assets

Provision for Gratuity

lnterest and other lncome "i

Operating Profit before Working Capital / Other Changes

(lncrease) / Decrease in Trade receivables

(lncrease)/decrease in Short Term Loans & Advances

(lncrease) / Decrease in Other Assets

lncrease / (Decrease) in Trade Payables

lncrease / (Decrease) in Other liabilities

lncrease / (Decrease) in provision

Cash Generated From Operations

Payment for gratuity

Extraordinary ltem / Misc.Exp./ Prior period

lncome tax Paici

ruLt Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Cash Flow from lnvesting Activities:

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment

Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

lnterest lncome received

Net Cash Used in lnvesting Activities

Cash Flow from Financing Activities:

Purchase of Company stock

Tax on buyback

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities

B.

64.961
I

I

I

8.441
I

7.92

-2.01

79.3L

-50.54

0.29

-0.11

7.97

31.19

6.19

74.24

-0.12

-4.41-

-20.23

108.32

7.79

0.23

3.70

-4.05

115.99

-36.15

-14.77

-26.56

o.67

15.60

15.84

70.52

-o.21.

-5.2L

-24.23

49.48 40.97

-2.98

2.07

-77.54

0.05

4.05

-o.97 -L3.44

(s0.10

(e.82

(se.s2)

Net lncrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents [A+B+C]

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year

(11.41) 27.53

ffiffi'.lf.A*l GURGAQil l+ 111.65 84.L2

I Cash and Cash Equivalents as at End of the Year \\9S*'g*Ys LOO.24 111.65
I\Q"EI'"9

Note:

a. The above Cash Flow Statement is prepared under lndirect Method as provided by lnd AS T "Statement of Cash Flow" notified
under Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.



Solveda Software lndia Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31.03.2024

(Allamounts are in lndian rupee millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

b. Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of:

Particulars Year Ended
3l-Mar-2024

Year End+:
31-Mar-232!

3alance with Schedule banks in current accounts
Sank Deposits with maturity less than 12 months
l:sh and Cheques on Hand and in-transit

Total

74.40
25.84

700.24
Refer Note 1 for Significant Accounting Policies
! =: accompanying Notes to financial statements
, re our report of even date attached

,i

Fdf Ahuia Arun & Co.
Orlrtlea Accountants

\\
\\ :

NS.
cA A{, Ktrula
Partner
',' No. 089709, FRN-012985N
: ?ce:Gurgaon
l:ied: 25-05-2024

Forand on behalfofthe Board c. I .=:::

/-1c.-fidA "O 
-!

Niraj Kumar Ganeriwal
Director
DIN: 03560704

\V\ rl N-- ;-)'vdr s\
Deepa\< AgaVat
Director
DIN: 02095054

,PA
lDEtfir\o'
IGAON f 1
01885N/ -#9
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Solveda Software lndia Private [imited
Statement of Changes in Equity as at 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in lndian rupees millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

(a) Equity Share Capital

"rr,**ao Year ended I Year ended
March 31, 2024 | fUarch 3L,2O2!

0.18

Changes in Share Capital due to changes in Accounting Policies
and prior period errors

Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting
period

0.18 0.18

Changes in equity share capital during the year: Buy Back -0.02

Balance at the end of the reportint perio,
i

(b) Other Equity

0.16 0.18

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus
Total Other

Equity
Capital Redemption

Reserve
Securities premium

reServe
General
reserve

Retained
earnings

Balance as at 1st April 2021 0.90 4.80 74.O5 79.75
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors -0.34 -0.34

Restated balance at the beginning ofthe reporting year 0.90 4.80 73.71 79.41

Profit for the year 32.77 32.77
lssue of eouitv shares 13.53 13.53
Other Comprehensive lncome (Net of taxes)
Cash Dividends
Balance as at 31st March 2022 ai 

^? 4.80 105.88 125.11

Ralannc a< af 1 <i Anril 1O?) 1A i2 4.80 lnE aa lrE 11

Changes in accounting policy/prior period adjustment -0.49 -0.49

Restated balance at the beginning ofthe reporting year 14.43 4.80 10s.39 124.62

Profit for the year 76.88 75.88
Cash Dividends
Balance as at 31st March 2023 14.43 4.80 182.27 201.50

Balance as at 1st April 2023 14.43 4.80 142.27 201.50

Changes in accounting policy/prior period adlustment
|t.21 -]-.21

Restated balance at the beginning ofthe reporting year
14.43 4.80 181.06 200.29

Profit for the year 55.47 55.47
Utilised in Buy back of shares -t4.43 -4.80 -40.68 -59.90
CRR on Buy Back of Shares 0.02 -0.02
Cash Dividends
Balance as at 31st March 2024 0.02 195.83 195.85

Refer Note 1 for Significant Accounting Policies
See accompanying Notes to financial statements
Vide our report of even date attached

Partner
M. No. 089709, FRN-012985N
Place: Gurgaon
Dated: 25-05-2024

0

^o.n{#,;-e4Niraj Kumar Ganeriwal
Director

DIN:03560704

. r-.v:}'-
N-z,"d42\
;;,"-f,",-sJ
DIN:02095054



Solveda Software lndia Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2O24

(All amounts are in lndian rupees millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

Note 1: Company Overview and Significant Accounting Policies

1. Company Overview

Solveda Software lndia Private Limited ('the Company') having CIN: U72200HR2006PTC049572 is a

Private Limited Company incorporated and domiciled in lndia and has its registered office at Gurgaon,

Haryana, lndia.
The Company caters to a diverse range of businesses, including 82B distributors & wholesalers,

manufacturers, B26 marketplaces, and to provide tailor solutions to the specific needs of each

industry segment.
The company is subsidiary company of foreign company "solveda LLC, USA" and step-down subsidiary

of "saksoft Limited, lndia", a listed lndian company. This is the first year of the company to adopt lnd-

AS in accordance Section 133 of the Companies Act, 20L3.
The financial statements were adopted by the Company's Board of Directors on 25th May 2024.

2. Significant accounting policies

a. Basis of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements in all material aspects have been prepared in accordance with lndian
Accounting Standards ("lnd AS") notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016 as applicable.

b. Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention and on an accrual basis,

except for the following material items that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant
lnd AS:

i. Derivativefinancialinstruments;
ii. Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value and

iii. Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits

c. Use of estimates
The preparation of the financial staiements in conformity with tnd AS requires management to make

estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses,

balances of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial
statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Accounting estimates could change from
period to period. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of
changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the
financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are

disclosed in notes to financial statements.
In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in

applying accounting policies that have most significant
financial statements is included in the following notes: ffi

w%
amounts recognized in the



Solveda Software lndia Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2O24

(All amounts are in lndian rupees millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

Revenue Recopnition
The Company uses the percentage-of completion method in accounting for its fixed price contracts.
Use of the percentage-of-completion method requires the Company to estimate the efforts or costs
expended to date as a proportion of the estimated total efforts or costs to be expended, as applicable.
Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on incomplete contracts are recorded in the period in which
such losses become probable based on the estimates at the reporting date.
lncome Taxes
Significant judgements are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including amount
expected to be paid / recovered for uncertain tax positions.

Propertv, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company.
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's
expected useful life and its residual value at the end of its life. Useful life and residual value of an asset
is determined by the Management at the time an asset is acquired and reviewed periodically,
including at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as

well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology.

Employee Benefits

The company's defined benefit obligation to its employees and net periodic defined benefit cost /
income requires the use of certain assumptions, including, among others, estimates of discount rates
and expected i'etui'n on plan assets. Changes in these assi.imptions may affect the fi.itiii'e funding
requirements of the plans. Actuarial gains / losses are recognized in Other Comprehensive lncome.
The sensitivity analysis for changes in estimates is disclosed under relevant Notes.

Other estimates

The Company estimates the probability of the collection of the accounts receivable by anaJysing
historical payment of patterns and customer credit worthiness. Estimates with regard to deferred
taxes and provisions are made based on the extent of uncertainty prevalent on the date of financial
statements, which may cause material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

d. Revenue recognition

The Company deri,res revenue primarily from software testing and related services. Revenue is

measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Revenue disclosed is net of discounts and Goods and service tax. For software testing and related
services, the performance obligations are satisfied as and when the services are rendered since the
customer generally obtains control of the work as it progresses. The Company has to apply the
principles of revenue recognition to each of the distinct performance obligation and transaction price
is recognized for each of the performance obligation of the contract.

The Company recognizes revenue when the performance obligations as promised have been satisfies
with a transaction price and when where there is no uncertainty as to measurement or collectability
of the consideration. Recognition criteria for various types of contracts are as follows:

ffi
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(All amounts are in lndian rupees millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

Time and Moteriol Contracts:

Revenue from time-and-material contracts is recognized based on the time / efforts spent and billed

to clients.

Fixe d- P ri ce Co ntra cts :

ln case of fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognized based on percentage of completion basis.

Where the performance obligations are satisfied over time and where there is no uncertainty as to
measurement or collectability of consideration is recognized as per the percentage-of-completion
method. When thei:e is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition
is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved.

Annuol Maintenance Controct:'

Revenue from annual maintenance contracts are recognized proportionately over the period in which

services are rendered.

Sale of products:

Revenue from sale of third-party software products and hardware is recognized when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on physical or
electronic dispatch of goods'

lJnbilled revenue represents earnings in excess of efforts billed on software development and service

contracts as at the end ofthe reporting period and is included as part of Other Current Assets.

lJnearned revenues represent billing in excess of revenue recognized on software development and

. service contracts and is included in Other Current Liabilities until the above revenue recognition
criteria is met. Advance payments received from customers for whom no services have been rendered
are presented as "Revenue received in Advance".

Other lncome

Other income primarily comprises of interest, dividend, foreign exchange gain/loss on financial
assets/ financial liabilities and on translation of other assets and liabilities. lnterest income is

recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss using effective interest method at the time of accrual.

Dividend income is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the right to receive payment

is established. Foreign currency gain or loss is reported on net basis and includes gain or loss in respect

of concluded forward contracts.

e. Property, Plant & EquiPment

Change in estimate during the year in accordance with lnd AS-8. During the fiscal year ending

3L.03.2024, the company changed its method of depreciation for its property, plant and equipment
from the Written Down Value Method to the Straight-Line Method. This change is in accordance with
lnd AS 16 - Property, Plant, and Equipment, which permits a change in the method of depreciation if
it provides a more accurate reflection of the pattern in which the asset's future economic benefits are

expected to be consumed. lt is also noteworthy that the parent company has been using the Straight-
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(All amounts are in lndian rupees millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

Additionally, the change is disclosed in accordance with lnd AS 8, which requires disclosure of the
nature and reason for the change, as well as its financial effect. The Board of Directors and

management believe that this change is in the best interest of the company and its stakeholders.

Property, Plant and Equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure directly attributable to acquisition untilthe property, plant
and equipment are ready for the intended use.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated / amortized over their estimated useful lives using

straight-line metho_d from the date the assets are ready for the intended use. Assets acquired under
finance lease and leasehold improvements are amortized over the lower of estimated useful life or
primary lease term.

Depreciation on Computer and Office equipment is provided on straight line method over their
respective useful lives as prescribed in Schedule ll of the Companies Act 2013. ln respect of assets

other than these, depreciation is provided over the economic useful life determined by technical
evaluation. The useful lives of those assets are as under:

Description Useful Lives (in years)
Plant and Machinery 5

Furniture and Fixtures 5

Vehicles 5

Electric I nstallations 5

Leasehold lmprovements 5

Based on technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives as given above best
represent the period over which Management expects to use these assets. Hence, the useful lives for
these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule ll of the
Companies Act 201-3.

Depreciation methods, useful life and residual value are reviewed at each reporting date.

lndividual asset costing Rs.5,000/- or less are depreciated in full in the year of purchase.

Gains or losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. Cost

and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financialstatements upon sale of the
asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Capitalwork-in-progress includes cost of fixed assetsthat are not readyfortheir intended use.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance

Sheet Date is classified as capital advances under other non-current assets.

f. !ntangible assets and amortization

lntangible assets are measured at acquisition cost less accumulated amortization and impairment
losses, if any. lntangible assets are amortized over their respective estimated useful lives on a straight-
line basis from the date they are available for use as follows

#sq
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(All amounts are in lndian rupees millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

Description Useful Lives

lntellectual propertv 35 months
Software Costs 6O months

Self-generated intangible assets are generally not capitalized.

The estimated useful life of an intangible asset is based on factors including obsolescence and the
level of maintenarlce expenditure required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset.

g. lmpairment

Non-financialassets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that a carrying
amount of a non-financial asset or a group of non-financial assets may not be recoverable and hence
require to be impaired. lf any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount
of theseassets. Recoverableamountisthe higherof anasset'sfairvalueadjustedforcostsof disposal
and the value in use. lf such recoverable amount of these assets or the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. This reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is

recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. lf at the Balance Sheet date, there is an indication
that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exits, the recoverabie amount is reassessed,
and the asset is reflected at such reassessed recoverable amount subject to a maximum of carrying
value of the asset .Non-financial assets (other than Goodwill) that are already impaired are reviewed
for possible reversal of impairment provision at the end of every reporting period.

Financial assets

Receivables: The Company follows'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss on trade
receivables, whereby, it recognizes impairment loss allowances based on life time expected'credit
ioss at each reporting period from its initial recognition.

Otherfinancialassets: Forallotherfinancialassets, expected credit losses (ECL)are measured at an
amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from
initial recognition in which case the same is measured at lifetime ECL.

lmpairment gain or loss recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss is the difference between loss
allowance reassessed on the reporting date and that determined on the immediately preceding
reporting date.

lnvestments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified
as current investments. All other investments are classified as non-current.

o Non-current investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are stated at cost and
any decline other than temporary in the value of these investments is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other non-current investments are stated at their fair value.
Current investments are stated at their fair value.

a
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(All amounts are in lndian rupees millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

On disposal of investments, the difference between proceeds and the carrying amount is recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

h. Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts to
mitigate the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates on foreign currency assets or liabilities and
forecasted cash flows denominated in foreign currencies. The counterparty for these contracts is
generally a bank.

Derivatives are recbgnized and measured at fair value. Attributable transaction costs are recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Cash flow hedees

Changes in the fairvalue of the derivative hedging instrument designated as a cash flow hedge are
recognized in other comprehensive income and presented within equity in the cash flow hedging
reserve to the extent that the hedge is effective.

To the extent that the hedge is ineffective, changes in fair value are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss. lf the hedging instrument no longer meetsthe criteria for hedge accounting, expires
or is sold, terminated or exercised, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. The
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve is transferred to the
Statement of Profit and Loss upon the occurrence of the related forecasted transaction.

Others

Changes in fair value of foreign currency derivative instruments not designated as cash flow hedges
and the ineffective portion of cash flow hedges are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
and reported within foreign exchange gains/(losses).

i. Non-derivative financia! instruments

INITIAL MESASUREMENT:

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial
recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measure at transaction price. Transaction
costs that a re directly attributable to the acq uisition or issue of fina ncial assets a nd fina ncial lia bilities
(other than financial assets and financiai liabilities at fair vaiue through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.
Purchase or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trade) are recognized on trade date.

SU BSEQU ENT MEASU REMENT:

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within
a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount Financial assets are
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(All amounts are in lndian rupees millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method, less any impairment

losses.

Amortized assets are represented bytrade receivables, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents,

employee and other advances and eligible current and non-current assets'

They are presented as current assets except for those maturing later than 12 months after the

reporting date, which are presented as non-current assets'

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if

these financial assets are held.within a business modelwhose objective is achieved by both collecting

contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset

give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

pri ncipal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value throuqh profit or loss: {FWPLI

Any financial asset not subsequently measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other

comprehensive income, is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets

falling in this category are measured at fair value and all changes are recognized in the Statement of

Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequentlry carried at amortized cost ustng the effective interest method,

except for contingent consideration recognized in a business combination that is subsequently

measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one

year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short

maturity of these instruments.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the

financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for De-recognition

under tnd AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized when the

obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires'

Fair value hierarchv:

The company's policy on Fair Vali.ration is stated below'

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are

categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that

is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded

securities)is based on quoted (unadjusted) market prices at the end of the reporting period' The

quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price'

Level 2 - The fair valuation of instruments not traded in active markets is determined using

valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximize the use of observable market data

6xffit
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and minimize the use of entity specific estimates (All significant inputs to the fair value
measu rement is observable).

Level 3 -Valuation techniques for one or more significant inputs to the fair value measurement is

unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a,whole) at the end of each reporting period.

j. Foreign Currency Translation

Functional and Presentation CUrrencv

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (i.e. the "functional currency). The
functional currency of the Company is the lndian Rupee. These financial statements are presented in
lndian Rupee.

Foreign currencv Transactions and Balances

Foreign current Transactions are translated into the respective functional currencies using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the respective transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
!osses resultine from the sett!ement of such transactions and from the translation of foreign ---- _ "o

currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities into the relevant functional currency at
exchange rates in effect at the reporting date are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and
reported within foreign exchange gains / (losses).

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denomirrated in foreign currency and measured at hisiorical cosi
are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction.

k. Dividends

Final dividends on shares are recorded as a
lnterim dividends are recorded as a liability
Directors.

l. Cash and Cash equivalents

liability on the date of approval by the shareholders.
on the date of declaration by the Company's Board of

Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and
usage. For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand, deposits held at call with Banks, other short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash which are subject to an insignificant change in value.

Statement of cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is

adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or

iNflES

tuw
future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or associated with investing
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or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.

m. Employee benefits

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company pays Provident Fund contributions payable to the recognized provident fund. The

contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and recognized as employee benefit
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Defined Benefit Plans

The company provides a lump.sum payment to eligible employees, at retirement or termination of
employment based on the last drawn salary and years of employment with the Company as per the
provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act,1972.

The liability or asset recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of a defined gratuity plan is the
present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period. Gratuity liability is a

defined benefit obligation and is recorded based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method made at the end of the Year.

The present value of defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash ouiflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds
that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The gratuitv liability and net
periodic gratuity cost is actuarially determined after considering discount rates, expected long term
return on plan assets anci increase in compensation leveis.

Remeasurement gains or losses arising from Experience Adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period they occur, directly in the Other Comprehensive lncome.
They are included in the statement of changes in equity and in the Balance Sheet. Remeasurements
comprising actuarial gains or losses and return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability) are not reclassified to Statement of Profit or [oss in
subsequent periods.

Changes in present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other short term Emplovee Benefits

As per the employment policy of the Company, employees are required to avail their annual leave by

the end of the respecti,re calendar year. At the end of the financialyear, the Company aceounts for
the remaining short-term compensated absences. Liability towards leave encashment is recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Undiscounted liability of performance incentive is recognized during the period when the employee
renders the services, based on management estimate.

n. Taxation

lncome-tax expense comprises current tax (amount of tax for the period determined in accordance
with The lncome Tax law) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting t ffects of temporary
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differences between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements). Taxes are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates
to items directly recognized in equity or in the Other Comprehensive lncome.

Current tax

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the taxable income for the period. The
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current tax amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date and applicable for the period. The Company offsets
current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and
lia bility simulta neously.

Deferred lncome Tax

Deferred income tax is recognized using the Balance Sheet Approach. The corresponding deferred
income tax liabilities or assets are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences
between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax lcsses can be utilized. Deferred tax incorne liabilities are recognized for all
taxa ble temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred income taxes are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based cn the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

o. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share ('EPS') amounts are computed by dividing the net profit or loss after tax, for
the year, by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpcse cf calculating Diluted earnings per share, amounts are computed by dividing the net
profit or loss after tax for the year by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
year considered for computation of Basic EPS and also adjusted for the effects of all measurable
dilutive potential equity shares.

p. Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. lnvestment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

Other borrowing costs are expended in the period in which they are incurred.
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q. Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker.

r. Provisions and Contingent !iabilities

A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present legal orconstructive obligation as a result
of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
in respect of which the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not discounted to its present
value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation that arises from the
past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company and that may,
but not probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation. Where
there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure
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Note No. 2 Property, Plant and Equipment

Reconciliation of the gross carrying amounts and net carrying amounts at the beginning and at the end of the year

the said amount.

Total

41.L5

17.51

19.91

38.7(

38.71

2.91

4L.7:

29.9
7.7

t9.7
18.0

18.C

9.t

L,I
26.4

L5.2

20.1

Lt.i

NoTE:ThecompanyfollowscostmodelasperlndAs16andthecompanyhasnotrevalueditsPPE.
*changeinestimatedurinsthevearinaccordancewithrndAS-8' Durinstheo*''L"^1,"::,::i,l:3"':?',i'Jli^;Ji:l'fl:l:::JlfrTl;i;:i:'jtt'tt"
,.T$",#"i,;;H::'.tffiil;;". ;ffi;.; oown varue Method to the Siraight-Line Method. rhis change is in accordance with rnd AS 16 -
propertv, Plant, and Equipment, which permits a change in the method of depreciation if it provides a more acculate ref'::::"-::t*"?,:;:::::"Jl[:":?r:

ll.lil:.'"::::iffiill;l}'J-;::.., . il:::,..0 ' 
,, is arso noteworthy that the parent companv has been using the straight Line Method ror

similar assets, thereby aligning the depreciation practices across the group'

The Depreciaiton related to prior period amounting Rs. 1.40 million is adjusted during the year resulting value of Property, Plant and Equipment increased b}

Motor vehicles
owned

24.95

t4.49
10,46

10.46

10.46

16.48
4.09

t4.49
5.09

6.09
4.37

-l
8.99

8.99

8.99

8.99

0.54

2.47
1.96
2.41
1.96

1.96

1.96

2.29
0.09
2.30
0.08

0.08
o.37

0.02
0.43

0.70
0.25

0.95

0.95
0.02

0.97

0.55

13.07
6.35
3.03

16.40

15.40
2.96

19.36

10.51
2.97
2.97

LO.67

LO.67

3.29

1.16
t2.at

Disposals / adjustments
At March 31-,2A2l

iation expense/Amortisation

March 31,2023

April 1,2023
Depreciation expense/Amortisation

: Adjustments (see note*)

Net carrying value March 37,2023
Net carrying value April 1, 2022
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NON.CURRENT ASSETS

NOIE NO 3. FINANCIAL ASSETS- OTHERS

Note No 4. DEFERRED TAx AsSETs (Net)

CURRENT ASSETS
NotE NO 5.1. FINANCIAI- ASSETS- TRADE AND OTHERS RECEIVABLES

Note No 5.2. FINANCIAI ASSETS- CASH & CASH EQUIVATENTS

Particulars
Balance As at

March 3L,2024
Balance As at

March 3L,2023

Security Deposit 0.49 L.O2

Bank deposits with more than 12 months 1.32 1.33

Iotal 1.81 2.35

Particulars
Balance As at

March 3t,2024
Balance As at

March 31,2023

Arisine from timing difference in respect of:
Property, Plant and EquiPment 1.52 t.o7

Retirement Benefits 4.94 2.L5

Cthers 4.73 o.2

total 11.19 3.42

Particulars
Balance As at

March 3L,2024
Balance As at

March 3L,2023

Unsecured)
Considered good 158.94 108.40

Sredit lmpaired o.t7
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (0.17)

Iotal 158.94 108.40

Particulars
Balance As at

March 31-,2024
Balance As at

March 3L,2023

a. Cash on hand 0.09 0.09

b. Balances with banks in current accounts and deposit 25.75 11.56

Iotal 25.84 11.65
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Note No 5.4. FINANCIAL ASSETS- TOANS
+

Note No 5.3. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Particulars
Balance As at

March 3L,2024
Balance As at

March 3t,2023

Fixed deposit with Bank with maturity more than 3 months 74.40 100.00

Iotal 74.40 100.00

Particulars
Balance As at

March 3L,2024
Balance As at

March 3L,2023
unsecured, considered good)

Employee Loans and Advances 1.25 1.54

Total t.25 1.54

Note No 5. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars
Balance As at

March 31,2024
Balance As at

March 3L,2023

Balance with statutory Authority 20.89 2],.35
Prepaid expenses 1.53 0.68
Other deposits o.25
--r- II Utdt 22.67 22.O3
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Particulars
Balance As at

March 31,2024
Balance As at

March 31,2023

Note No 7. Share CaPital
A) Authorised, lssued, Subscribed and Paid up Share capital

Authorised:
50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fullv paid up' (previous year: No Change)

lssued & Subscribed & Paid-uP:

15,830 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each (Previous year 17500 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each

fully paid up)

Total

0.s0 0.s0

0.16 0.18

0.16 0.18

tst n"..,r,.itirtion of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Outstanding as at beginning of thdlear
Add: Shares bought back

Outstanding as at the end of the year

17,500
(1,670)

17,500

15,830 17,500

C) M"**"rt in f quity Share Capital during the year:

Particulars

AsatS1,l03l2O24 As at 31103/2023

No. of EquitY
Shares

Share Capital No. of Equity
Shares

Share Capital

;hares outstanding at the beginning of the year 17,500 0.18 17 s00 0.18

Add: Shares issued during the year (face value NIL Nlt NIL Nrt

Less:Shares buyback -L,61C (0.02) NlL NI

;hares outstanding at the end of the year (face 15,830 0.16 17,500 0.18

ing comPanY

Name of the companY

Asat3tl03l2O24
Number of

shares held in
the company

Percentage of shares held
% change duing the

year

Solveda LLC, Holding Co. Class A Equity Share 10 00c 63.r8% 7%

Ihreesixty Logica Testing Services Pvt Ltd -Holding Company
-Class A Equity Share (see note J below)
-Class B Equity Share (see note J below)

4!6t
1664

36.82% r00%

Name of the companY

As at 31/03/2023

Number of
<hrrps hpld in
the company

Percentage of shares held
% change duing the

year

Solveda LLC, Holding Co' Class A Equity Share 9,900 56.57% Nil

E). Terms / rights attached to Equity shares

The company has two class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share.

i.1,4,1,66C1ass A Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up represents the equity shares carry one vote for each share held'

ii. 1664 Class B Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up represents the equity shares does not carry any voting right'

tn the event of the liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after

ldistribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders'

ffi$
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Solveda Software lndia Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in lndian rupees millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

Balance As at
March 31,2024

Balance As at
March 31, 2023

F) Shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of
shares/disinvestment, including the terms and amounts

NIL NIL

G) For the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance

Sheet is prepared:

(i) Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid-up pursuant to contract(s)
without payment being received in cash

NIL NIL

ii) Aggregate number and class of shares bought back 7 670 NIL

H) Terms of any securities convertible into equity/preference shares issued along with
the earliest date of conversion in detcending order starting from the farthest such date

NA NA

l) Calls unpaid (showing aggregate value of calls unpaid by directors and officers) NIL NIL

l) Forfeited shares (amount originally paid-up) NIL NIL

K) Shares in the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares

S. No. Name of the shareholder
As at MarcF 3L,2O24 As at March 31,2023

Number of shares held
in the company

Percentage of
shares held

Number of shares held in
the companv

Percentage of shares
held

I Solveda LLC 10,000 63.r8% 9,900 56.57%

2 Deepak Agarwal 6,L70 35.2601

3

Threesixty Logica Testing
Services Pvt Ltd -
Holding Company 5,830 36.82%
Total 15,830 100.00% 16,070 9L.83%

6ffimffi



Solveda Software lndia Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

All amounts are in lndian rupee millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

Note No. 8 Other equity

Buy Back Shares: Utilisation of Reserve

Particulars
Balance As at

March 3L,2024
Balance As at

March 3L,2023

a) Capital reserve 0.02

nnWno+ii or loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's

own equity instruments is transferred to capital reserva
b) Securities premium reserve 14.42

Arnounts received (on issue of shares) in excess of the par value has been

classified as securities premium.
c) General reserve 4.80

This represents appropriation of profit by the Company.
d) Retained earnings 195.83 182.28

Retained earnings comprise of the company's undistributed earnings after
taxes.
e) Share option outstanding account
The share opti,ln outstaMtng¤ccount'ts used to record the value of equity-
settled share based payment transactions with employees. The amounts
recorded in this account are transferred to share premium upon exercise
of stock options by employees. ln case of forfeiture, corresponding balance
is transferred to retained earnings.
f) Financial lnstruments through other comprehensive income
Changes in the fair value of equity instruments is recognized in equity
instruments through other comprehensive income (net of taxes), and
presented within other equitY.
g) Foreign currency translation reserve
h) Other items of other comprehensive income
@ive income consist of re-measurement of
net defined liability/asset.
fotal 19s.85 201.50

Particulars Year 2O23-24 Year 2022-23

Buy Back No of equity shares of Rs. 10/- eq9!19!ly!9'd rg L,67O
Amount in million Amount in million

Buy Back Price of the above shares 50.10 Nil

fax on buy back 9.82 Nil

Totql 59.92 Nil
Utlization from Reserve
Share Premium Reserve 14.43 Nil

General Reserve 4.80 Nil

Retained Earnings 40.68 Nil

Total 59.91

/*9-q
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Solveda Software lndia Private limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

I amounts are in lndian rupee millions, except share data and as otherwise stated
Note No. 9 Provisions

Particulars
Balance As at

March 3L,2024
Balance As at

March 3t,2OZ3

Gratuity Payable* 16.11 L8.58

Iota I 15.11 18.s8
* Refer Note 22c for details of gratuity plan as per lnd AS 19

10. Other non-current liabilities

Particulars
Balance As at

March 3t,2024
Balance As at

March 3L,2023

Bonus Payable 76.17

Iotal t6.L7

Refer Note No. 24 for trade payables ageing
(*) Refer Note No. 22 efor MSME disclosures

Note No. 12 Other current liabilities

Note No. 11 Trade

Particulars
Balance As at

March 31-,2024
Balance As at

March 3t,2023
fotal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (*) 1.88 0.5s
@fcreditorsotherthanmicroenterprisesandsmall
enterprises 9.04 2.47

Total LO.92 3.02

Particulars
Balance As at

March 3L,2024
Balance As at

March 31,2023
Statutory dues 6.73 1.06

Others 24.26 14.91

Total 30.99 L5.97

Note No. 13 Provisions

Note No 14. Current Tax liabilities (Net]

Particulars
Balance As at

March 31-,2024
Balance As at

March 3L,2023
(i) Provision for Gratuity 3.53 3.11
(ii) Provision for incentive 70.70

Total L4.23 3.11

Particulars
Balance As at

March 3t,2024
Balance As at

March 3L,2023

Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 26.93 27.75

Total 25.93 27.75

ffim
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Solveda Software lndia Private Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in lndian rupee millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

Particulars
Y ear endecl

March 3L,2024
Year ended

March 31,2023

Note No 15. Revenue from Operations

Sale of services 455.89 375.90
455.89 375.90

Reconciliation of revenue recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss with contract Price

Particulars
Year enoeo

March 3L,2024
Year endecl

March 3t,2023
Revenue as per Statement of P&L Account
Sale from Services 455.89 37s.90
Total ( a ) 455.89 375.90

Add/ tess adjustment to contract price
FE variation claim
Price concession offered
Iotal adjustment (b)

Contract price {a + b) 455.89 37s.90

Satisfaction of performance obligation
a. The contract performance obligation is satisfied "over time" which is primarily determined on customer
obtaining control of the asset.

b. For revenue recognition in respect of performance obligation satisfied "over time" the following criterias are
--,l a-. J-!--.--:.-:--..,L-rL^- L-- ^L+^i-^irla^^+-^l^^-..^illusg(l lur uetelllllllltlH, wllcLllel Lu5LUlllul lld5 uuLdillEu LUllllur vrr oJJqL

. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity's performance as the
entity performs.

I

l. The entity's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
lenhanced.
I

l. The entity's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity and the entity haS an
I

lenforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.
I

lc. Transaction price is typically determined based on contract entered into with customer.
I

ld. No non-cash consideration are received/given during the current/previous year.

ffi



Solveda Software lndia Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in lndian rupee millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

Note No 15. Other lncome

Particulars
Year enqeq

March 3L,2024
Iear enoeo

March 31-,2023

A) lncome from investments
Dividends
Provision for diminution no longer required written back

Total(A)
(B)Others

lnterest income
Exchange Fluctuatioq (Net)

2.07 4.05
0.79

Total (B) 2.OL 4.84
Iotal Other lncome (A)+ (e) 2.01 4.84

Note No 17. Employee Benefits Expense

Particulars
Year enoeo

March 3L,2024
Year ended

March 3L,2023

Salaries and wages
Contribution to Provident and other funds
Staff Welfare Expenses

313.4s
13.51
s.33

199.73
7.85
4.90

Iotal 332.29 212.48

Note No 18. Finance Costs

Particulars
Year ended

March 3t,2024
Year enqeg

March 31,2023

Bank charges 0.04 0.03

fotal 0.04 0.03

Note No 19. Depreciation and amortization expense

Particulars
Year enoeo

March 31,2024
Year ended

March 3L,2023
Depreciation 4.07 7.79
Amortisation expense 4.37
Total 8.44 7.79



reare lndia Private Limited

Notesformingpartofthefinancialstatementsfortheyearended3lMarch2024
(All amounts are in lndian rupee mil|ions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

Note No 20. Other ExPenses

Particulars
Year enclecl

March 31-,2024
Year ended

March 3L,2023

3.49 4.43

rol and annvPVAnce 7.60 6.26

2.32 1.59

Rates and Taxes 1.16 0.03

0.16 0.19end Er rel

atffi.o FYnFnses 1.85 3.87

Repairs to Plant 1.54 t.76
o.46 0.69nication Exoenses

Rad dehts written off 1.91 2.58

Payment to statutorY auditors
0.41

As Auditors 0.60

:l Professional and consultancy charges 2.35 5.41

and Sale PromotionRr
t.20 0.91

t8.72 19.02
c.r rnnnrt and Third Partv Charses

4.54 3.52
I .nct

2.3L 0.01icenr rnt allowed
L.74

CSR Expenditure
-0.00 o.22

Miscellaneous ReceiPts
o.77

I fnr dnuhtfrrl debts
wrh Fln.trr2tion I oss (Net) 0.55

ivliscelianeous exPenses
n 1rl L.22

Iotal 52.17 52.12

Note 21 Other comPrehensive income

Particulars
Year encled

March 3t,2OZ4
Year ended

March 3t,2A23

that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of Defined Benefit plan

irl oein/(l I ohlisations 9.86 (4.83

(2.48) 1.22
Add: Current Tax on above

7.38 (3.52)
Total

\
i"7t',xm^\'"'we
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Solveda Software lndia Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in lndian rupees millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

Additional notes

(a) contingent Liabilities

Additional Notes (Continued)
22 (b) Related PartY disclosures

the

Particulars
As at As at

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
0.54 0.43

l.lncome-tax matters

orjUdgmentthatispendingatvarioU5forumsand

torities. The company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have an adverse material effect on the financial results'

Solveda LLC-63.18% Holding Company

Jltimate Holding ComPanY

Saksoft lnc, USA

saksoft Pte Ltd, SingaPore
MC Consultinq Pte Ltd.
Mc consultins Malavsia
Saksoft Solutions Limited, UK

Fellow Subsidiaries
Fellow Subsidiaries
Fellow Subsidiaries
Fellow Subsidiaries
Fellow Subsidiaries

Acuma Solutions Limited, UK :ellow Subsidiaries

Faichi Solutions LLC, UsA Fellow Subsidiaries

6T"am orblisoftech Pvt Ltd, lndia :ellow Subsidiaries
:ellow Subsidiaries

Mattermind Training and Cons Private Limited

Sumitra Devi director is interested

)hool Chand Agmal
(ey management Personnel

Mr DeeDak Aesarwal

DescriPtion

Year ended Marct
3r,202t

Year ended March 31
2021

Revenues
L55.22 212.19

f"i.Urt*.""t .t "rP"*t tlt"O Year ended Marcl
3,.,2021

Year ended March 31,
2022
9.44

o.72
0.92

13.82 15.91

0.92
2.lt 2.36

other than Remuneration

0.94 o.79

0.94 o.79

0.0c 0.45

0.94 o.79

Mr. Deepak Aggarwal 21.00

DescriDtion

Year ended March
!1,2024

Year ended March 31,
2023

Receivables
98.s8 55.75

0.72
0.92

tr/!ittermind Trainine and Cons Private Limited 0.59

wW

:.llnw qrhsidia.ies

;olveda LLc, UsA (lmPort of se,,ice)

t i-i+^/ ln/i.

,rcpsirtv LoEica Testine Services PW Ltd

i.6. Ov+ I td

--r.^-. D,n,5|6 I imir6d



Solveda software lndia Private Limited
Notes formint part of the Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in lndian rupees millions' except share data and as otherwise stated)

22 (c) Gratuity
IMPACT IN THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS:

The expenses charged to the statement of profit and Loss for period along with the corresponding charge of the previous period is presented in

the table below:

ilon,take5intoaccountinflatIon,seniority,promoilonanoottlcIl¤l
factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market The expected return on plan assets is based on expectation of the average

lonB-term rate of return expected on inveitments of the fund during the estimated term of the obligations'

i["H[:'","J,':ri[::ilffj,"i',iflll1T",.o*, or riabirities assumed or settred, ir anv, which is recorded immediaterv in other

comorehensive lncome (OCl) during the period is shown in the table below:

INANCIAT AT THE VALUATION DATE Year Ended

Particulars
l!-Mar'24 31-Mar-23

7.L5% 7.75%
Discount rate (P.a.) r
Salarv escalation rate (P.a ) : : : :: ::: ,:;

12.00% 25.OO%

senioritv, prom otion and other relevant

4". ", plr**tt less interest on plan assets

out the status of the

lnterest on defined

iiilGs / (gain) arlsing fto'

ffim
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Solveda Software lndia Private Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in lndian rupees millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

::Ifili:[J;lm pran and the cost of providins these benefits '' 
tvl''i!],'"::-::::l'::::"':::i:" ,ti-:'1":Tlt:::]:J:::H:# 

*"
key actuarial assumptaons to which the benefit obligation results are p.r,,.utrit, sensitive to are discount rate and future salary escalation rate'

The following table sLitnmarizes the impact in percentage,"rm on iro r"port"d d"rin"d benefit obligation at the end ofthe reportin8 period

arising on account of an increase or decrease in the reported assumption by 50 basis points'

EJ* * prun assets less interest on plan assets

s distributed on settlements

Year Ended March 31,2024

il inf increase in 50 bps on DBo

of decrease in 50 bps on DBO

22 (d) Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Particulars
Year ended

March 31,2024
Year ended

March 31,2023
48.09 80.50

Earnings (Net profit for the year (Rs' ln mlrrron'

15,830 17,500
15,830 17,500

Total number of equity shares th¤ Pno -oI tne Ye-ar --oj:'! -- -- --- --- -- --- ---- - ----- 16,310 17,500
weighted average number of equlty shares ou6ranqrnB d5 " "'= ="- -' "'- "-' ---- -

16,310 17,500

cd;' W"igl,t"d *"tage number of equity shares arising out ot ou$tanolng ttocK oPtrurr> ('roL

lavedilutiveeffectontheEP: - " . ----"---'--'------"-----""-'--- 16,310 17500
Weighted average number of equitY snares ou6ranurlrE u'' "'6 ''' t"-' *"-'--

4,600
Earnings per share of par value Is'+Y - E-9-5r: tLr::i- - 2,949 4,600

ffi

Particulars

Year Ended

4.72 I 7.39
0.31 0.17
0.28

(0.9(
(3

1.07 4.72



Solveda Software lndia Private Limited

Notes forming part ofthe Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in lndian rupees millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

(e) Dues to Micro and small enterprises

The company has initiated the process of obtaining confirmation from suppliers who have registered under the Micro' small and Medium

EnterDrises DeveloDment Act. 2005'

The information required to be disclosed under the Micro, small And Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('the MSMED Act") has been

determinedtotheextentSuchpartieshavebeenidentifiedonthebasisofinformationreceivedfromsuchpartiesandavailablewiththe
Company. There are no overdue to parties on account of principal amount and / or interest as OOC'*",11I:Y.

22 (0 Disclosure under lnd AS 115

The entire revenue from operations for the year ended 315t March 2024 and 31st March 2023 related to revenue from software seruices

lnformation about contract balances

The company classifies the right to consideration as Trade receivables and unbilled revenue'

Tradereceivablesareamountsbiltedtothecustomeronsatisfactionofperformanceobligation.UnbitledrevenUerepresentsrevenueslnexcess
of efforts billed on software development and service contracts as at the end of the reporting period and is included as part of other Financial

Assets.
Billing in excess of revenue are classified as unearned revenue Balances of trade receivables, unbilled revenue and unearned income are

aVailableintherelevantschedulesofthefinancialstatements.TradereceivablesandunbilledrevenuearenetofprovisionintheEalancesheet.

lnformation about performance obligations

performance obligations estimates are subject to change and are affected by several factors including change in scope of contracts' its

termination, foreign currency adjustments and any Other items influencing the measurement' collectability and performance of the contract'

Disclosure relating to remaining performance Obligation across all liveixed bid price Contracts relate to require the aBgregate amounts of

transaction price yet to be recognized as at the reporting date and expected timelines to recoBnize these amounts' ln view of the fact that all

outstandingcontractshaveanoriginaiexpeciedciurationforcompletioncflessthanayearnodisc!osureiswarranted.

id to any suPplier 3t the end
The principal amounts and interest

ihe mount of interest Paid bY frte-ilsms of section t6 of the tvtsuEo nct 2006

ffiers beyond the appointed day during each

delaY in making PaYment(which

paid but beyori8 the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest

specified under MSMED Act 2006'

ffiuini@
in the succeeding Years until

when the interest due above are actuatty paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose

disallowance as a deductible expenditure under sectl

ffi



Solveda Software lndia Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in lndian rupees millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

22 {t) Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concerns while maximizing the return to stakeholders

through the optimization of the debt and equity balance. The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investors,

creditors and market confidence to sustain future development of the business'

Particulars
Year ended

March 31,2024
Year ended

March 31,2023
195.01 201.68

195.O1 201.68

100% roo.t

)ebt as a percentage of total capital

The Company is predominantly equity fnanced which is evident from the capital structure table above. The Company's risk management

Committee reviews the capital structure of the Company on an onEoing basis. As part of this review, the committee cOnsiderS the COst of capital

and the risks associated with each class of capital.

22 (h) Financial lnstruments

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 is as follows:

The Management assessment of fair value of cash and short-term deposits, ftade receivables and trade payables, bank overdrafts, and other

current finJnc!a! assets and !rabilities approximate the carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments

The company,s derivative financial instruments consist of foreign currency forward exchange contracts' Fair values for derivative financial

instruments are based on market observable inputs and are classified as Level 2. The most frequently applied valuation technique include

forward pricing model, using present value calculations'

Particulars
Balance as at

March 31,2024
Ealance as at

March 31,2023

158.94 104.40
25.U 11.65

1.25 L.54
1.81 2.35

t2r.94

t0.92 3.02

TOTAL TIASII"ITIES
10.92 5.!Z

ffi
a*H"ry

eouitv attributable to equitY share holders of the Company ..--

ratal rleht held bv the ComDanv

renitrl tFnrritu and Debt)

.ililill' ^iiIiIIl'} t.t,r *itat

Trade and other receivables
cash and cash equivalents

^iL^.- C--^.i-l ..c6+.

Ai Cost
lnvestments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

?Ailr Accffc

E:----:-l I i-hili+ia.

^--r:-^f a^4

tuh^. C^.-.i-l lilhiliti6c



solveda Software lndia Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in lndian rupees millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

(i) Financial Risk Managem¤nt

The company is exposed to a variety of financial risks; credit risk, liquidity rlsk and market risk,viz; foreign currency risk and interest rate risk' The

Company has a risk management policy to manage & mitigate these risks'

The company,s risk management policy aims to reduce volatility in financial statements and aims to foresee the unpredictability of financial

marketsandseektominimizepotentialadverseeffectsonitsfinancialperformance.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks as summarized below

credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to the financial instrument fails to meet its contractual

obligations and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and investment securities'

Financial instruments that potentialy subject the company to concentration of credit risk consists of trade receivables, investments' loans' cash

and cash equivalents, other balances with banks and other financial assets. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of

ir," tinrn.ij assets. Bytheir nature, all such financial assets involve risks, including the credit risk of non-performance by counterparties'

The Company periodicalty assesses the credit quality of the counterparties by taking into account their financial position, past experience, ageing

of accounts receivables and any other factor determined by individual characteristic of the counterparty.

The maximum amount of exposure to credit was as follows:

Trade receivables:
The company has used a practical expedient by computinB the lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision

matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information. The company's exposure to

customers is diversified. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the fact that the customer base is large and unrelated'

Liquidity Risk:
.L^ -i-L,k-+,L^.^6^,-.,.r.ir .^r ho,hla t^ an.nr!nrer its financial obligations associated with financial liabilities as they become

Lrqulgliy laSi ii il.E iii^ LiidL rirs gerriPor'|,

due. The company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, to maintain sufficient liquid funds to meet its liabilities on the due

date. The company consistently g¤nerates sufficient cash flows from operations (with adequate reserves) and has access to multiple sources of

funding (banking facilities and loans from promoter company) to meet th¤ financial obligations and maintain adequate liquidity for use The

processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by Senior Management'

Particulars
Ealance As at March

37,2024
Balance As at March

3L,2021

158.94 to8.40
25.84 11.55
74.40 100.00

1.25 1.54
1.81 2.35

t'orAt 262.24 221.94



Solveda Software lndia Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in lndian rupees millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

Market risk:

.t
Market risk is the risiinat the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. such

changes in the vaiues of financial instruments may result from changes in the foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, credit, liquidity and

other market changes. The Company's exposure to market risk is plimarily on account of foreign currency exchange rate risk.

Foreign Currency Risk:

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive

lncome ard equity, where any transaction references more than one currency or where assets / liabilities are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the Company.

The Company's exchange risk arises from its foreign currency revenues (primarily in U.S. Dollars, Australian Dollars and United Arab Emirates

Dirham). A significant portion of the Company's revenue are in these foreign currencies, while a significant portion of its corresponding costs are

in lodian Rupee. As a result, if the value of Indian rupee appreciates relative to these foreign currencies, the Company's revenue measured in

lndian Rupee may decrease and vice versa. The exchange rate between the lndian rupee and these foreign currencies has changed substantiallyin

recent periods and maY continue to fluctuate substantially in the future.

The Company periodically determines its strategy to mitigate foreign currency risk. The Company evaluates the impact of foreign exchange rate

fluctuations by assessing its exposure to exchange rate risks. lt hedges a part of these risks by using derivative financial instruments in line with

its risk management Policies.

The following table presents foreign currency risk from non-derivative financial instruments as at each reporting period:

lnterest rate risk:

lnterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest

rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates arises on Company's debt obligations with floating interest rate-

Maturity profile of the Company's non-derivative financial liabilities based on contractual payments is as below:

Particulars
Year 1

(current) 1 - 2 years 2 years and above

As at March 31, 2024
Borrowings

10.92

Ither financial liabilities

3orrowings
3.02

Cther financial liabilities

The maximum amount of to risk was as follows: tn

Particulars
Balance As at March

3L,2024
Balance As at March

17,2023

ln US Dollars
frade receivables

1o4.57 58.3:
4.20 235

ln AED 2.LL

turq;

:s

l< at Mrr.h 31. 2023

Trade Pavables



Solveda Software India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2o24

(A11 amounts are in Indian rupee millions except share data ald as otherwise stated)

Note No : 23
Analysis of Ratios

Reasons for variance

current Ratio - During the current year current assets has increased.

Return on Equitv - During the current year the profit is decrease which has resulted in decrease in ratio.

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio - During the current year the Credit sales has increased as compajed to previous
year.

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio - During the current year the credit purchase has increased as compared to
previous year.

Net Profit Ratio - During the current year the prof,rt has been Decreased due to increase in expenses.

Particulars Numerator Denominator 3L-03-2024 3t-o3-2023
1. Current Ratio (in times) Total Current

Assets
Total Current
Liabilities 3.41 4.89

2. Debt Equity Ratio (in times) Total Debt
(represents lease
liabilities)

Shareholder's
Equity

3. Debt Senrice Coverage Ratio (in
times)

Earnings available
for debt service

Debt Service

4. Return on Equity ( in %) Pro{it attributable
to equity share
holders

Average
Shareholder's
Equity

28o/o 479

5. Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio Net sales Average trade
receivables 3.41 4.8!

6. Trade Payable Turnover Ratio Purchases Average trade
pavables 133.11

7. Net Capital Turnover Ratio Net Sales Workins Capital 2.28 7.92

8. Net Profit Ratio Net Profit Total Income 10.5s% 21.42(

9. Return on Capital EmploYed EBIT Capital
Employed 30.640/o 49.t9'

1O. Return on lnvestment NA NA NA NA

ffim
l(.sHffm-)*

Return on Capital Emploved - During the current year EBIT is decreases which resulted deerease in ratio.



Solveda Software India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 3lst March 2O24

(AJl amounts are in lndian rupee millions except share data and as otherqrise stated)

Note No: 24 lrgeitg Schedule - Trade Payables

Particulars

Outstanding as at 31st March 2024 ftoa the due date of
payment

Less than 1
year 1-2 years 2-3 years >3 years Total

MSME 1.88 1.88

0thers 1.69 o.2l 1.90

Disouted dues - MSME
Disr:uted dues - Others

Total 3.58 o.2t 3.78

Partlculars

Outstandiag as at 31st March 2O23 from the due date of
payment

[,ess than 1

Year
1-2 years 2-3 years >3 years Total

MSME
Others 1.63 1.63

Disputed dues - MSME
Disputed dues - Others
Total 1-53 1.63

Outstanding as on 31st March 2024 from the due date of

- having signilicalt increase irr credit risk

Disputed - having sig.rifi"@

Outstanding as on 3lst March 20.23 flrom the due date of

Undisputed - having significant increase in credit risk

Disputed - having significant increase in credit risk
Disputed - Credit im



Solveda Software lndia Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in lndian rupees millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

Consequent to the ComPanies i

has been made at the Year end
subsequently.

Expenditure

(corp*.t" s*ial Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021 ("the Rules"), provision

for the unspent amount and the same has been transferred to a separate bank account

Note 26 'ate Social ResPonsibili

Particulars
Year ended

March 31, 2024
Year ended

March 31, 2023

61 Grott amount required to be spent by the company during the year 1_14

(b) Amount spent during the Year on : 0.80

cl (shortfall/ Excess at the end of the year (0.34)

lot ln-*t spent in the current year relating to previous years shortfall

(e) Reason for shortfall NA

(f) Nature of CSR activities . Promoting education among

children , women,elderlY and the

differently abled and livelihood

enhancement Projects.

[y Wf,"r" a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a

contractual obligation, the movements in the provision
NA

tf..|l O"t.ifr of related party transactions (contribution to a trust controlled by the

company in relation to CSR expenditure)

NIL

#s
* t LYllts. I*w



Solveda Software lndia Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in lndian rupees millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)

Note. 27 Contingent liabilities and Capital Commitments
As on the date of the balance sheet, the Company had no contingent liability & had no capital commitments.

Note No. 28 - Relationship with Struck off Companies
The company has not entered into any kind of transactions with Struck off Companies with anytime during the
Financial Year 2023 -2024.

Note No. 29 - Compliance with number of layers of companies
The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Cornpanies

Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

Note No. 30 - Amounts in Jt e financial statements
Amounts in the financial statements are rounded off to the nearest millions.

Note No. 31 Other disclosures under Schedule lll

(i) Title deeds of lmmovable Property:
There is no immovable property hold by the company during the year. Hence the same is not
applicable

(ii) Details of benami property held
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made
thereunder

(iii) Borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current asset
The Company has not taken any loans/ borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current asset.

(iv) Willful defaulter
Company has not been declared Willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or gove!'nment
or any government authoritY.

(v) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangerfient which has an accounting impact on
current or previous financial year. '-

ffi#K)
t[*:ffit-)lw



(vi)

(vii)

Solveda Software lndia Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in lndian rupees millions, except share data and as otherwise stated)
Undisclosed income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax
assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or
previous year.

(viii) Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property
The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or
intangible assets or both during the current or previous year.

-i

(ix) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies.
There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the
statutory period.

(x) Utilization of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions
The Company has not taken any loans/ borrowings from banks or financial institutions in the current
or previous financial year.

(xi) The Company has not declared or paid dividend during the year as ended March 31-,2024

(xii) Relationship with struck off Companies
The Company does not have any transaction with struck off Companies.

(xii) Loans or advances to specified persons
The Compan-v has not given loan or advances to specified person.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

1*ea;*"{
N!ra! Kumar Ganeriwal
Director
DIN: 03560704

ffim
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